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      MINUTES
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

         Wednesday, January 26, 2011 3:00 p.m.

   Meridian City Council Chambers

   33 East Broadway Avenue - Meridian, Idaho

1. Call Meeting to Order (Lipschultz): 
Slocum:  Chairman Lipschultz will be joining us late, so I will call the meeting to order.  It is January 26, 2011 approximately 3:00 p.m.
2. Roll-call Attendance (Lipschultz):
     O
 Larry Lipschultz – Chairman (arrived late)
     X
 Keith Bird – Member

     X 
 Craig Slocum – Vice-Chairman
     X
 Jim Escobar – Member 
     X
 Eric Jensen – Secretary/Treasurer
     X
 Julie Pipal – Member 


     O
 Tammy de Weerd–Member 

     X
 Todd Lakey – Counsel 


     X
 Ashley Ford – Project Manager
3. Confirm Agenda (Lipschultz):  
Bird:  I move we confirm the agenda as published.

Jensen:  Second.

Slocum:  Any discussion?  Hearing none, all those in favor say aye.

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.
4.
Approve Consent Agenda (Lipschultz):

a. Approve Minutes of January 5, 2011 Special Meeting:  
b. Accept Treasurer’s Report and Notice of Bills Paid:

Ford:  If I can just add we did receive revised December 2010 financial statements from our CPA yesterday and a copy of those have been laid beside your agenda packets, so these replaced what was in the original agenda.  I just wanted to call that out to your attention.

Bird:  I move we approve the Consent Agenda with the addition of the revised financial statement for December 2010.

Jensen:  Second.

Slocum:  Any discussion?  

Roll Call Vote:  Jensen, aye; Bird, aye; Escobar, aye; Pipal, aye; Slocum, aye.

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.
5. Legislative Update (Scott Turlington):
Turlington:  Glad to be here, Scott Turlington of Principle Strategic Advisors.  So the update for today I think – good timing in terms of the meeting.  Last week under the direction of the subcommittee, I started getting our legislation drafted through our legislative services to incorporate four of the elements that the Board and subcommittee discussed in terms of where we wanted to position Meridian in this debate that is starting to really heat up.  I have been working with the Meridian Delegation, if you will, Representative Palmer, Representative Behar, Representative Hagadorn and we also included them and Senator Fulcher.  Representative Palmer and have been mostly in discussion along with Cliff Behar and leadership has kind of asked him to work with us to kind of create a bill that they think will be palatable as a compromise bill, which is what we have been putting our bill out there as a compromise to it.  Currently there are about 7 different pieces of legislation that are being drafted like ours.  One is an outright appeal of the urban renewal statute and has been put forward by representatives from Nampa and is probably the most extreme and probably has a little bit of support in the committee in going through and other provisions – we will mess around with the increment and it will propose to put caps on the increment, how much you can actually spend or collect to allow the taxing districts to opt out, so a number of the things that we have seen before.  There is not much new but for the outright appeal of the law.  Our legislation that we are drafting for Meridian will have essentially at this point four elements in it.  The first element is that prior to creating a district and boundaries will have to be voter approved by simple majority, which is consistent with other taxing districts.  The second element is if you are going to annex a property into the district, it can’t be done by shoestring annexation.  The third element is if you are going to annex bare land into a district and a single owner bare land, you have to get the owner’s consent and the fourth element is it would lower the years you bond for from 24 years to 20 years.  So those four elements are what we are incorporating into our draft at the moment.  It is really tough to say – well I will give you my opinion at this point.  I think most of the bills that are being considered will come out of committee and make it to the House floor and the reason I say that is because this year instead of having all of the bills go through the House Revenue and Taxation Committee, they are all going through the local government committee.  There is a night and day composition of those committees as Julie noticed.  One committee, local government committee, the bill that would abolish the district’s actually starting that committee (inaudible) and it has the support of the chair with Behar and so I think it is going to be probably a dog fight on the House side and my efforts in working with leadership is to have Meridian’s bill really positioned as the compromised bill.  Because what they really want is more accountability and transparency and we believe our ideas put that forward.  If it did a full outright repeal, I would be surprised because you can’t turn the switch off this late in the game and I think it will be here – 65 districts I think today’s – Jim and I were at the lunch today, the Freedom Foundation sponsored – a rabid anti urban renewal district guy and which I think most of his points were true, I wouldn’t say untrue, but it has got to be put in the proper perspective.  So I think where we are trying to get positioned at this moment is to emerge as sort of the favored legislation on the House side.  Most of these bills, if not all of them run into a huge problem on the Senate side, the committee that they are going to go to.  The committee isn’t as concerned of all the issues as the House is, so we will kind of use that as a little bit of a backstop in the event some of these other bills that are less desirable can make it through, we can engage on the Senate side.  So that is an update on where that process is.  I haven’t been communicating at all with the new Urban Renewal District Association so unless they read our minutes after today’s meeting, they are not aware of what our position is at the moment.  I think it was sort of the thought of the committee that we didn’t feel like we needed to inform them of what we were going to be doing.  They are in the process of retaining (inaudible) to help enhance their cause.  In my opinion it is likely that they will oppose our efforts for a couple of reasons.  They are looking for text status quo and it is just status quo (inaudible) option this year.  So it should be something that we have got to be a part of the solution.  I think a couple of times a week, I am giving updates to the subcommittee and we are going to stay engaged at least a couple of times a week because this is going to be a fast moving – fast moving isn’t the right word, it is going to be a very dynamic sensation.  It will drag out all session.  Nothing will be quick, but it will be under all the entire time.  I hope to have our draft legislation done hopefully by Monday or Tuesday next week.  Legislative services is getting that prepared now, which I will distribute to Todd and then to the subcommittee to look at for consistency and to the rest of the committee, but we are trying to keep it very simple in our approach and minimizing the number of areas that we are going to focus on and try to pick those areas that have the most interest from legislators.  So that is a brief update of where we are and what we are potentially looking at.  
Slocum:  Thank you Scott. Questions from the Board or additions from the subcommittee?

Pipal:  I was really interested in just maybe to hear a little bit about who attended that luncheon today, what you learned?

Turlington:  I will give you my perspective and then Jim can weigh in.  About 75 people were in attendance.  I think I counted about 7 or 8 legislators and they were the usual suspects in my mind, in terms of where they are, but the speaker, I forget his name. I think he gave a good accurate description.  His thesis essentially challenges the purpose for urban renewal for Idaho today because – this isn’t the 60’s in downtown Chicago and people are fleeing the urban area.  So, that is kind of just a premise.  So, he had some numbers like $50 million have been sucked out from districts in the last few years and his question is why?  Why do we need urban renewal districts?  So, that is kind of what I thought I hear.  I don’t think any of his facts were incorrect.  I think it is a matter of principle.  If you believe that urban renewal districts are doing good, then the history of where they come from are much relevant.  If you don’t believe they are doing good then get on board and repeal it and do away with them.  They are the real division.  I think that is the two schools that is going to be interesting to see.  That is my take on it.  The food was awful, as always.  Jim do you have anything that you want to add to that?
Escobar:  I think you hit it pretty well on the head.

Pipal: Were there any other urban renewal districts in attendance?

Turlington:  Not that I could tell.  We had one city official and I don’t know where he was from. He said they didn’t have an urban renewal district, but some county officials there.  I didn’t see any other urban renewal district folks there.  

Slocum:  Ada or Canyon or both or others?

Turlington:  Both, yeah.  There is a real push from sort of the Canyon County, Nampa, Caldwell folks.  The table that I was sitting at, the one gentleman was pretty opposed – he said you know 68 percent of my taxes went to the district, he has a commercial business downtown – listen, there are businesses here that have those issues and I think what our efforts have been was to establish a process where if you don’t like it you voice the opinion and be heard as it is a voting district.  I feel comfortable that there will be very few efforts to try and get commissioners elected and I think that was kind of the (inaudible) of last session and that seems to be where they are.  But, yeah, mostly Ada and Canyon.  

Pipal:  Mr. Turlington did you hear anything different from some of the folks that were in the room than you have heard floating around the State House in terms of other ideas?  It would be nice if we could actually say that we are going to be seven, so we know that there were seven pieces of the legislation – did you hear anything else?  As some of you may or may not know what it starts out looking like, doesn’t necessarily mean what it will look like. Is there anything unusual?

Turlington:  What leadership told me last week is they started off with about 20 bills – what they would like is to get that down to 7 or 10.  I didn’t hear anything today that was new.  There was no new ground being broken today.  I think the one new area may be they would try to tinker with the actual increment (inaudible) to try and put a cap on that.  What was interesting was the Chairman of the local government committee Lenore (inaudible) – she was there and she asked the speaker if he could provide her with all of his documentations and literature.  What that told me is there is going to be a Chairman’s bill.  He actually advocated – he said listen I don’t think we should have renewal districts, but if you are going to have them, here is what you should consider.  I think that is where Lenore will come down.  If you are going to have them, here is where they should be.  Cap the increment amount that you are going to have.  Have a voting district created, which I think solves most of the problems that you have.  No new original thoughts there, just kind of the same stuff.  
Slocum:  Anything else?  I guess just a question on and maybe it is committee – Ashley, draft next week when would we potentially see it on our agenda of legislation?

Ford: Probably the first meeting in February.  The first regular meeting.

Turlington:  That would be the logical thing.  What will happen is when we get the RS from legislative services, it will come to us to kind of get – to make sure that we are comfortable with it before its been approved and then the sponsors will then schedule a print hearing to take to the committee and request that it be printed.  Then once it gets printed – that is usual for committee members, they don’t usually reject those to get printed and then once it is printed they will have it here and that is how all of these bills will go.  One of the things that I am going to work with the subcommittee on is identifying all of the bills that Meridian wants to oppose; for example the repeal of urban renewal law.  I would suspect that the Board would want to focus on that.  But I will get my directions from the subcommittee who will then bring this back to the Board.  So I will have a list of all the bills that will be coming up for a hearing and get that input and direction from the Board on how they want to handle these.  I think the good thing is that we have a piece of legislation that when we stand up and say we don’t think this is the right approach (inaudible).  So we should start seeing the bills come up by the end of the – well hopefully by the end of this week or next week.  Right now everybody is walking around trying to figure out who they are going to blame for this budget.  
Pipal: I just want to clarify something.  Are we actually going to approve legislation in this committee?  I mean, our actual RS?

Turlington:  Mr. Chairman I am going to bring to you legislation and ask for your approval of it.  If you wanted to have Meridian’s approval, I will leave that up to the Board to decide how you guys want to handle that, but I think with our bill – I mean, unless you want a different way to approach that?

Pipal:  I am not opposed to it being a part of the record prior to having a print hearing, but it is kind of nice to be able to do what you just said well you heard these and here is ours without getting a lot of things going outside of the legislative arena which is what happens if it is part of our process.  Because if it is here it is public and generally RS’s are not public until they are printed.  

Turlington:  The way we could potentially handle that is when we know what the (inaudible) areas that we talked about and I can report back to you without bringing the RS team so that the RS isn’t a matter of public record and say here are the elements in the bill or I don’t know if the subcommittee is subject to public meetings or not – but 

Slocum:  They are not because there is not a quorum.

Turlington:  I can just send it to the subcommittee to look at – just let me know how you are going to handle that (inaudible).

Bird:  I kind of am going along with what Scott said originally.  If my name is going to be associated with a bill, I want to see what is in it.  If I don’t agree with everything and there is a couple of things that I am considering now that I don’t agree with 100 percent and if it is going to be saying Meridian Development Corporation backs this and I am part of that board, I want to see it before it goes.  

Turlington:  That would be one of the main reasons that you would want to do it in the drafting period.  We can make changes once it has been printed, but it has to go through the amending process and to Mr. Bird’s point a good reason to make sure (inaudible).  I understand Julie’s concerns too.

Pipal: Just for clarification, it was not my intention to say that we shouldn’t review it; I was just calling everyone’s attention to the fact that normally those are the private property of the bill sponsors and they are not public until they are printed.  We are a public entity and if we do that we are putting that out there before – and giving our opposition a chance to get to the committee before we do.  Not that Scott hasn’t done a good job, but that is just the way it works.  
Bird:  Under statute 67-2345 and I think it is “a”, Todd – we can look at contracts and that kind of stuff in an executive session – it is not public papers at that point.  If that is your fear.  My fear is I am not having something go forward that I have not seen or agree with.  

Pipal:  I don’t believe that that is covered until the public records law.  It is not personnel, trade secrets or legal – unless it is clearly defined of those things then –

Lakey:  That is my first inclination that I am not sure that we can fit it under one of the exceptions of the contract of whatever – it is really more of a political verses a legal question.  When do you want to get it out and when do you want it to be public and do you also want to put your names on it, put your weight behind it?  Timing is kind of up to you.

Pipal:  Maybe that is the point that we want to make to Scott – maybe direction is to kind of find out the timeframe that we are really looking at and then we try to as best we can do it as close – if that is what we all want to do.  I was just simply calling it to fact that that is the way it works.

Turlington:  To that issue, we can control when the bill gets scheduled for a hearing and so we can kind of within a few days of the Board looking at it and make this decision and definitely have some influence in that area.  It will be up to a sponsor and –

Slocum:  But it will have to be printed prior to the hearing.  

Turlington:  We will have a draft of it.  

Slocum:  Well, obviously the committee has heard the Board’s concerns and we will look for committee’s recommendation for our next meeting.  Thank you, Scott.
6. Destination Downtown Presentation (Anna Borchers-Canning):
Canning:  I met with Ms. Ford and Mr. Lipschultz and presented some of what I had been working on and they asked that I come and do the same for you.  It is a little bit long, but I think the easiest way to let you know what I have done and what I haven’t done -- I suppose is to just go through chronologically how this all happened.  First thing, you did, was come up with destination downtown, which I love.  The first time I saw it I thought this has some great nuggets in it here and there; this is what I have been looking for.  This is what I needed.  I needed to know what you all wanted with downtown and I think that destination downtown does a fantastic job of setting that out and it does it in a way that is easy to read, that you know, you want to pick it up and skim through it.  So it is a great document. I loved it. Then I started thinking okay, what am I going to do with it?  I started looking at it and I thought well I can do that part and turn the page and I can do that part, but there was never anything that I could do all of it.  So when I am presented with conundrums like that my first inclination is to throw it all in a database and see what happens and so I did that.  I downloaded all destination downtown per elements; fortunately I could copy and paste out of them.  I threw it into a database and I took your focus area, your project number and then each of the implementation and action items, your scope, your timeline and your priority and I threw them all into a database.  I had to break down the action items because some of them would be done by different people.  So like on yours, your project number is L1 and then you have an implementation and action items and the second one is consider the adoption of local preservation policy, etc.  Well it has got a second sentence.  So the first one becomes L.1.2 – 2.1 and then you get L.1.2.2; it is fairly easy to follow, but I broke them up that way just so I could work with them a little easier in the database.  That was the first step and I really just did it for my own benefit.  Then I went through and I thought okay what can the Planning Department work on?  I went through and I picked about 20 items that the Planning Department could work on and said, okay, what kind of priority do I want to give these and so I did that and then my fatal flaw occurred.  I sent it to the Mayor and said what do you think?  And her reaction was where did you come up with all of this stuff?  How did you make this up?  I said, I didn’t make it up; this is all in destination downtown. I think that they packaged it so well it was hard to see everything that is truly in there.  Then we went through and I added some more columns of what is the city’s priority instead of the Planning Department priority?  What is the city priority?  Then looking at who might be the appropriate lead – whether it is economic development, whether it is MDC, whether it is the Police Department, whether it is Planning – you know who might that lead be?  We took at stab at that and then there is another column that is – whether or not is done – because some of them – this phase from downtown took a while to get through and some may have passed.  So some of these things are done, I think.  You may not think so, which is fine and you can let us know, but I think some of them are done.  So went through that way and the Mayor had me run it through the department directors.  So each of the directors got a list of what I thought that maybe they could take the lead on or perform some sort of support function on and they went through all of those and kind of assessed them and gave their priorities and thought about whether or not they should be a lead or to be supportive or whether it fit in with what they saw as their core functions at their offices and so we went through all of that and we reconciled all of those and that is basically how we get to – and I ran it in front of City Council as well – in front of Mr. Bird and he has had to sit through this more than once, but – ran it through Council as well and make sure that they were in the loop on what we were doing.  As we went through all of the departments, we looked at those priorities and further defined those.  I think that is where we get today. I sent three copies of the databases to you.  They are just database reports.  They look more impressive, but it is just set it up and print the paper a different way.  I have managed to kill quite a few trees with this one, so MDC should at least plant a couple of trees in honor of this project.  The action items by lead is probably the easiest one to go through first and I think it was the first one on your – this is kind of the most over all one.  I can walk you through it – 

Slocum:  Not sure if I wanted to interrupt you or – so one point of clarification the priorities that are within these three documents, are they the priorities that were listed on each of those in the destination downtown or are they priorities you and the other departments have established?

Canning:  They are both there.  If it says DD priority that is destination downtown; if it says city priority that is the city.  So on action item by lead, just says priority, but that is the city priority.  

Pipal:  I think for the record for those that maybe weren’t a part of it, maybe you could just explain how you got here because when I read in our packets the – it says a follow up to a conversation and it says comparing priorities and obviously you are talking about different entities here and trying to align the priorities of different entities – maybe you could just give us a quick – how you got here?  Because MDC did not assign this to you – there is a how can we work together --?

Canning:  Exactly, okay – yeah, definitely.  My whole intent in doing this was one I know you don’t have staff to do everything that it is here, nor should you have to do everything that is in destination downtown.  I took destination downtown – I was involved enough to know that we did a great outreach, similar to what I would do, came up with some great ideas and to use it really – I saw it as a finding document for myself to move forward on.  So my hope was to come up with a way that we could mutually work on destination downtown and not duplicate efforts.  I didn’t want you all working on something that I already started working on six months ago.  That just is not a good way to do things.  So I felt that there was a clear opportunity to say we will do this.  Here is some other stuff that we don’t think that we really can or should do and maybe that will help you, maybe not.  You may decide we don’t care if you are doing it, we still want to do something of that sort.  But my hope was I could narrow down your to do list a little bit I suppose and give you some items to focus on that the city wouldn’t normally undertake.  Does that help?

Pipal:  Yes, thank Mr. Chair.

Canning:  I can go through the comparing priorities document in just a second.  I do think it would help first to go through this one.  I wanted to back up for a second.  I knew I was going to forget.  As I was assigning the planning priorities, one of the things that I want to do is for each (inaudible) of sub districts in destination downtown is meet with each of those property owners and do a mini plan for them, just so that I understand what your zoning needs are, what your comprehensive plan needs are, what your design standards may be for each of those and as we were hiring a replacement for one of our planners, I kept that in mind and was able to hire a young man who has a lot of comprehensive planning experience and specific planning experience and he happens to be sitting in the audience and so I wanted to introduce you to Brian and he is full time with our staff now and he will be helping with those mini plans as we go through, so if you hear people talking about Brian this is Brian.  Okay.  Action items by lead – okay on this one the priority is the city priority.  I think I did this one originally for city staff, so I didn’t label it city priority, I apologize and then you see support is Parks. So there is two lines for each one.  The first line is all in italics, so that is the priority and the support.  So Arts Commission would be working on livability 3 by destination downtown, action item 1 is develop a downtown arts program plan including elements for programs, such as proven and contemporary arts displays, youth arts, murals, etc.  So the Arts Commission is committed to helping work on that and as support the Parks Department would help as well.  The Arts Commission, I met with them and they put a high priority on this item.  So that is how this table works.  I am certainly not going to go through everyone of them, but I just wanted to read one to give you an idea of how that works.  So you have got the Arts Commission, the building division, Chamber of Commerce; we have not talked to the Chamber of Commerce, just want to let you know that – consultant and these are ones that were either identified in destination downtown that you would hire someone or were they just seem to be the likely candidate if you would be hiring someone – economic development, enforcement – Histo preso is my abbreviation for the historical preservation commission – legal department, Mayor’s Office and then to page 5 you get MDC and it goes through page 7, page 8, page 9 up to page 11.  So we still left you plenty to do.  We didn’t want to take away all of your fun.  MDC property math – that cut off, sorry about that – this the property manager for the Ground Floor.  Then Parks Department, Planning Department – I gave myself a good 3 or 4 pages, so I tried to help out and I think the last page is Public Works.  

Slocum:  Anna, each of those headings is sorted just by the four groups at this --?  Obviously is in the database, but could be sorted by priority, I guess?

Canning:  Yes.  I could sort it however you want.  I did it by the action item, thinking that maybe you would want to reference that back.  But you are right, I can tweak these however you want.  If there is a specific report that strikes your fancy when you are all done, I would be happy to kill another tree for you – next is the comparing; so the Chairman had asked me to do this one and it looks at the city priorities verses the destination downtown priorities and the difference between those two.  Let me say for destination downtown, it lumped priorities for all of L1, all 4, 5, 6 action plans – all 5 action items had one priority listed, so the city’s priority was a much finer grade, just something to keep in mind anyway. On your comparing priorities report, the city feels that some of these items are already done.  So here is the first one – we think this is done.  We think we have identified appropriate union pacific decision makers, arranged meetings and negotiations.  We feel we have done that, but again you may disagree and you may want to do it on your own, but from the city standpoint we feel like this is done.  Now this crops up three or four times and we don’t mark all of them as done.  Your timeline had it as near term, 1 to 5 years and then we had noted MDC as the lead on that.  That is livability item 7, third action.  Let’s skip to the next page.  I printed off the email that I sent, but I forgot to bring it down.  Do you still have it – the priorities highest was –
Ford:  Three months.

Canning:  Thank you and high was fiscal year and medium was --?

Ford:  Next fiscal year.

Canning: And low was --?

Ford:  Within five years.

Bird:  Very low was --?

Ford:  Six to ten.

Canning:  And non priority, we think we can take it off the list.  But that is up to you.

Ford:  Maybe you can elaborate a little bit more about that as to why you feel some of these things are inappropriate so they –

Canning:  Let me go to one of the highest because that is a good example – so the highest start on page 4.  We had said that we had identified the players for Union Pacific, but here is one initiated dialogue about their operational need within the region – identified problem areas along the rail line and identified strategies and opportunities to improve rail road operations in the Treasure Valley.  The brackets indicate notes the Mayor had me (inaudible) – it is not just Union Pacific it is also (inaudible).  That is highest priority for the city and it was a high priority for MDC.  You had it in the near term, one to five years.  I think that is a good example of some of the highest ones, just like basically we are actively working on them and hope to seek resolution too.  Let’s go to one of the non priority ones.  The header is at the bottom of page nine, so they really start on page ten.  M7.3.2 was a good one and I can speak to that one.  Use revenue from parking fines – this must have been really long because I had to cut out words – to promote public art and beautification of other community amenities.  This is one where the city just didn’t feel it was appropriate to use revenue from parking fines to fund an arts program.  It was just that simple.  So some of them – it really is just a matter of we didn’t think it was appropriate.  If you look at S5.5.2, consider setting maximum allowance coverage limits for urban suburban developments to reduce water use – we did feel a maximum allowance was the way to go and prefer to work – so we are implementing incentives to reduce water use through (inaudible) scape and allowing that as an option, but we didn’t think it was appropriate to set a maximum turf coverage allowance.  There are some following those that are ongoing – that means that we have already started and we don’t plan on stopping anytime until it is fully evolved.  Union Pacific shows up again on that first one, so they seem to show up a lot.  Solicit applications for and select potential tenants – I think that is the Ground Floor.  I am not sure – I left those numbers there because sometimes I have to go back for the larger one that is the problem with breaking it up, sometimes you will lose the context.  It is not perfect, but it was quick.  A lot of those P2’s are Ground Floor, I think.  L6.1 secure new or developing existing trail corridors as part of the new trail system; not rail, but trail – rail trail was added and that was something that we had been working on for a while.  The final report I gave you, which I think (inaudible) so I won’t go into much detail, but I gave you the ones where MDC – a short one where MDC was the lead and I thought that might be helpful for you, just to have that one.  With that, I am happy to answer questions, happy to run additional reports for you, happy to get started working on projects with you.  
Slocum:  Thank you.

Canning:  Happy to overwhelm you with paper.  

Slocum:  This is probably a loaded question, but I will ask it anyway. So as this Board and the four committee heads have struggled with how to move forward with the implementation and the time you have spent in analyzing this and looking at it and having discussions with the other departments, do you have thoughts on how to best get some of this implementation started?

Canning:  Well I think it has started.

Slocum:  I was very by the way happy to see the done column because there are some things that I think we have accomplished and I kind of wanted to throw that out and send it to lots of people.

Canning:  There are other ones that people have committed to doing.  They are high – the ones that are shown as highest and high, they are already in folks’ plan to get them done this year.  The Mayor is committed to those other ones that is shown as medium to having folks commit to those in their strategic plans throughout the coming years.  The ones shown as highest and high, we anticipate that those will be done by the end of this fiscal year, which is half over already –it always scares me when January comes around.  From the MDC side I have been fairly open with folks.  I mean, most of the people attending your four sub committees are my staff and I would rather devote my staff resources to the ones that we have identified here, not that we won’t help, I am not saying that, but I just think it may be a better use of my staff’s time if we could work on the ones that we have committed to as shown in these documents.

Slocum:  And that does encompass all four sub committees?

Canning: Right.  Yeah.  I think there is a real opportunity.  What I think is a real opportunity is for MDC to look at the ones where you are the lead, where we expect you to go through and you know find one that is sexy, you know, like the Meridian Urban Market.  That was on the list.  That had a lot of appeal to it and people want to work on it. That one moved real fast.  (Inaudible).  I mumbled that just for Machelle’s sake.  That is one that people can really kind of pick ones like that, get people interested, go find people at the Chamber, get them involved in a defined project where they don’t feel like they are signing up for a lifetime commitment – we want to get this project done, let’s get it done and move it on.  
Ford:  That is exactly how I would like to move forward.  As I have mentioned to this Board Members a few times, I am concerned about the Board committees.  I think there is so much overlap and so much wheel spinning, but I think if we can identify some low hanging fruit, some actual tangible projects and then figure out who we can go make the personal ask to be on those committees and help us with those projects, I think we will get a lot further.  So I would like to work with all four committee chairmen to identify which projects are the ones that we want to go after and identify (inaudible) and start forming those committees and start moving forward and figuring out ways that we can support Anna and her staff as well too.
Canning:  We will still need help from you.  When I go out to do these mini plans, we can have a Board Member there or Ashley there – we will even take Todd.  It would be good to let folks know that this is a combined effort that the city is following up on MDC’s plans and that we participated, we heard and want to move forward.  Even if you are on your own doing maybe just one or two projects, there still should be other projects that folks are involving MDC on.
Slocum:  I guess I would look for – I know Ashley talked to me and I am sure she has talked to the other committee – whatever our titles are – sub committee leaders input on moving forward and the four sub committee’s languishing and we have got some obviously some people that have stepped up to say I will be a champion, but it would be easier to have them be a champion of a specific defined project rather than of this livability committee – look for your input so that we can help Ashley move forward as well.  

Pipal:  I was sort of thinking the same thing and sort of come to the same conclusion from talking to people because when I have solicited people to even serve on the sub committees to look at what would the low hanging fruit be?  Because our idea was just to bring some proposals forward to the right (inaudible) and then to the right entity to lead us this pathway between x and y.  The problem was until we actually – they were really looking to us to say well tell us what you are going to do and then we will let you know what we think and it is because people are so busy.  So if we were to say here are some of my priorities and one of the things personally on mobility that I would like to do is the way finding and signage – that is a real improvement, something visible that we can show – okay, we took what you said and here is this component of the master plan implemented and then we can show people that we did that and I think that we need to show some progress even though there are a lot of good things that have been done, I would even suggest having Chad look at these and say alright here is what that has already been done and here is x, y, z or four things – here is where we are going next and tell people this is what we are doing and go out and say okay folks this is what we are doing, what do you think?  That well may be how we get them involved because the reactions I got were great we are glad you are doing this, but don’t come and ask me to help until you tell me what I am supposed to do.  So we are kind of trying to do the cart before the horse, I think.
Ford:  We did get some of that feedback in speaking with the Chamber a couple of weeks ago as well too.  So I think we could get some involvement there and know exactly what kind of projects we want to pinpoint and make the personal ask of them by those individuals in the community that would make the most sense to be on those projects.

Canning:  That is such a perfect example – because that is one where the Arts Commission is willing to help with the look and the feel of those signs and I forget if there were other support members, but I am pretty sure they were listed as support on that one. That is where it isn’t appropriate for the city to go out and put signs, that is for ACHD to go out and do that, but it would be great if MDC goes out and does it because that is kind of what you guys are there for and that is just a perfect example of a great project, but I think you could get a lot of support for that would be fun.  You know, who doesn’t want to go put up nifty new signs and every time you drive through downtown you go I helped work on that.  It is visual, it is fun and you get to work with arts commissioners.  

Pipal:  And business people – actually downtown that we would be directing people to.  I just have to throw that in there.  That is really what we are here for is to help the folks who are supposed to be bringing private investment into downtown and that is a way to say this would be a great place to be because we care about where you are as a part of our community and here is a program that we have that helps drive traffic to your business.  
Slocum: Other comments or thoughts?  

Pipal:  Anna, I love somebody that loves rows and columns, but I will tell you I looked at it and at first went oh – I am wondering if there is a way that we can maybe lop this off, run it a little bit shorter.  We could argue about the merits that the program came up with – is there a way that we could run a shorter report that may be just really slots the top priorities for MDC based on all the information?  I know you did that one and I am sorry if I am whining.

Canning:  No, no.  That is fine.  

Pipal:  I don’t really know how it could be slotted, but if there is a way to distill it down to one page where we could say you know what this is really what – based on what we are working on or I don’t necessarily care that the criteria, but something to start from so that we could actually look at it and make some decisions and – I don’t know, maybe I am whining and you guys – some of the other liaisons for the sub committees –

Canning:  You could always go back to your own document and just circle those.  You might go to your destination downtown document and circle the ones that are on the first three pages of this MDC by destination downtown priority – highest and your high. That is one way that I could do it.

Pipal:  I will tell you one of the things that I liked about what you did is the partnership aspect of it because I do not want to be – you will never find me – MDC might want to go do something that we are already doing – no.  I don’t think under any circumstances do we want to be duplicating efforts and there are ways that we could work in partnership and get more leverage and more done; then I would like it maybe to come from the comparison and how we can work together.

Canning:  All I need to know is what you want on it in all honesty.  The choices – I can leave you –

Slocum:  Can you eliminate anything that is not high and highest?

Canning:  Sure.

Slocum:  I mean, that is what Ms. Pipal is after.

Canning:  The columns I have and I am going to leave these with Ashley.  I could leave you the list of what the columns are and you could just circle which ones you want on your report, you can circle like how you want them organized for one and two and I would be happy to run another report for you and make it look less column-ish.  It looks column like right now because there was so much that I had to get it in there.  If you want to combine them back in (inaudible) L1.2 you are better off going back through destination downtown.  But if you want to leave them broken out I can do that.

Pipal:  I like the idea looking at how we want it sorted and I also want to look for those opportunities where we can work with our partners to really get some things done because we are supposed to be leveraging our resources and we are not an extension of the city, but obviously the city has control over a lot of the things that we want to do.  We can go to businesses and we engage the city and the Chamber and the various entities that have responsibility for those things and I think we stand a better chance of getting the people who are in these downtown businesses that are considering being here and want to be a part of it because then they say oh all the folks that should be at the table are there, so if I get involved I am getting involved with something that has a high likelihood of happening and that is really where I am going with this. I would like to identify those things, not necessarily the highest priority, but some of the things will be easier for us to do – I go back to the way finding and signage, I think that is doable.  It didn’t necessarily come out as the highest priority in the things that we wanted to do, but I think because I am on that sub committee, if you ran something similar to what Craig was talking about the highest and high and it didn’t show up, I am going to be saying it is not on there.  That is okay, but I would like those partnerships, that component of what you did that shows who the support – who they are.  I just think that is going to give us some better opportunity to leverage the people – I know the people that I talk to, I don’t know about you guys, but if we were to go to them and say here is what we want to do and here are the people that need to be involved and –
Slocum:  You have got Parks and –

Pipal:  Right.  And now here business owner get involved because now we are telling you what we want you to do or asking you how you want us to proceed.  We have got to find a way to engage these people.  This is not supposed to be volunteered, MDC Board running amuck in downtown Meridian.  It is supposed to be leveraging those private investment dollars and having the right people at the table to do it.  I really do like what you did and I am not a rows and columns person, but I really like people who are.  

Canning:  One thing you may want to consider is going through the MDC by destination downtown priority and coming up with an MDC priority.  I mean, destination downtown wasn’t necessarily an MDC priority.  Again, this is an opportunity to take a more refined look at it and maybe you come up with your own high, highest, medium and low and each of you can mark up one of these and I can put it in there and compare and –
Slocum:  And see if we are in agreement?

Canning:  Yeah, I am happy to do that for you.  It doesn’t really take up that much time and – but if you all came up with your own priority and then it might be a more useful port for you, but I am also happy – I will give this to Ashley and (inaudible).  I couldn’t just print off the columns for some reason, so it is one page of items – it just goes on for two pages (inaudible).  So you can circle which ones you want on there and giving me some idea of what is most important to you would help too.  

Pipal:  Since I managed to take this down a squirrel hole, I am not being clear – I will look at the things that have mobility components and circle those and forward those to Ashley.

Canning:  And rate them?

Pipal:  Yes.  

Canning:  Yeah, maybe that is the way to do it – break it up by the –

Slocum:  I guess I am trying to get to next steps too, not only for us, but destination downtown, but obviously for Ashley as well.  But I guess if the four of us get together it is a quorum, isn’t it?  When are we – typically those are at the second meeting of the month?
Ford: But there is not one scheduled for todays.  

Escobar:  I think it would be important that somehow we do get together because I have noticed so much in our sustainability group; most of it has already been taken care of in the other three groups.  So we are twiddling our thumbs trying to figure out what can we actually do because we can’t even identify any projects in our sustainability group and we would like to because we would like to be doing something tangible that some people could be moving forward with.  So some how get together with the four of us so that we can talk about what is a priority of each group, where the overlaps are, which ones we can let go of because it is being taken care of over here and almost loses division of four groups.  

Slocum:  So I guess if I would make a recommendation in between now and our second meeting in February, we individually look at the information that Anna has been so gracious in preparing and it is wonderful by the way – specifically related to our sub committee, get that information and priorities to Ashley and then meet as an entire group following our second meeting in February and discuss next steps.

 Canning:  Is there a form or a report that I could help you with for that meeting?  I can do one that just has blank priorities so you can fill it in if you want.  These really don’t take me all that long to set up, ten minutes maybe, if I know what you want. 

Slocum:  In my thought as each one of us ranks our priorities, a listing of how we compare so that we know if we had shared highest priorities or – does that make sense?  

Canning:  Well, I guess my question I wasn’t being very clear.  Like this one only has MDC lead on there, it doesn’t show you all the support after.  This one has both the priorities, the timeline, but again, just the lead not the supports.  This is the only one that has all of the supports on it.  So, if there is a form or a report that you want of just the MDC, you can use this one, just go to that MDC page 11 and keep on flipping through to page 17, I think it was.  You can use that one.  That is pretty good.  There are other ones where you are listed as support, so you will have to go look through this one for that one as well because this one is organized by lead.  But maybe that is not as important; maybe you are just –

Pipal:  I would look for the ones with the lead.

Canning:  So I would suggest using this one.  This one has the most information.
Slocum:  It has the support departments as well?

Canning:  Now what it doesn’t have is it doesn’t have a destination downtown priority on it.  

Slocum:  I think that is all right.  I think we are in some case re-evaluating the priorities anyway.

Canning:  Yeah.  So it sounds like you could use this one.  You will assign your own priorities.  I would be happy to put them into the database for you and then I can do a quick little report that shows who is right and who is wrong.  

Slocum:  Well I do thank you for the time and the effort, not only from putting all of the information down, but obviously the rest of the city staff and departments in analyzing that.  I think that is the next step that we needed to take.

Canning:  (Inaudible).

Slocum:  But, thank you.
7. Broadway Building Partnership Update (Lipschultz):
Slocum:  This has got Larry’s name on it, maybe I will let Ashley and Todd take the lead as we have had some changes in the last 24 hours.

Ford:  I will just start out in saying hopefully each of you received my email last week in explaining the circumstances surrounding the reason why we did not do the bid opening today – it is unfortunate that those issues were brought up very late in the ball game for us, however I feel good in the fact that we are going to be able to still stay on schedule and be able to award the bid next Wednesday at the special meeting.  It has put us in a little bit more of a time crunch.  You open the bids on Monday, review the bids on Tuesday and to award that bid on Wednesday.  I feel comfortable in where we are in this process and Todd; I have to just take my hat off to him.  He was so responsive yesterday and was doing everything he could to keep this ball rolling.  I am really grateful to him in this as this has been a little bit of a complex situation.  We had several conversations yesterday with insurance companies and general contractors and it just came down to the fact that if we were going to continue with the bid opening today, we wouldn’t have a bid – because as we both have learned there are very insurance companies here that will cover the general contractors in the area and I don’t think we know of one that would have covered any of the general contractors for today’s bid opening.  I do have a revised schedule in front of you.  So the one that was in the original packet, obviously has been adjusted a little bit, so as I mentioned the bid opening is Monday at 2:00 in this room and if you are all going and might want to be there, I think that is great, I just need to make sure that we don’t have a quorum, otherwise we have to notice it.  The bid review is going to be Tuesday morning and then we have our meeting next Wednesday about 2:30 in Council Chambers to award the bid.
Bird:  Did you get a confirmation on that?

Ford:  I did get a confirmation on that sir.  The schedule after that would be to deliver the contract to the general contractor that Friday.  We need to give them ten days to review the contract, get comments back to us and then to get their bonding in place so that would place them getting the contract back to us on February 14th, which is a Monday.  In the meantime we would be meeting with Washington Trust on February 7th to talk through the draft documents.  We can’t finalize those documents until the contract is signed by both parties, but we will be continually working with Washington Trust and bond counsel to make sure the process is moving in that direction.  We do have a special board meeting on Wednesday, February 16th at 9 a.m. to sign the contract and Mr. Chairman we are definitely going to need you to be here to sign for that as Commissioner Lipschultz will still be traveling at that point.  We will execute the loan documents with Washington Trust on February 18th and the goal is to commence construction at the end of February – February 28th, that Monday.  So I think we are still on schedule.  I have been communicating with Collier’s, COMPASS and VRT.  They are very aware of the situation and I think everybody is feeling comfortable where we are at this point.  I will just turn it over to Todd if he has anything to add.
Lakey:  You covered it Ashley.  It is too bad that the issues got raised really toward the end of things, but made some adjustments to give sureties some comfort and kind of backed it up closer to the AIA documents that started and got the addendum out today.  I don’t anticipate any other comments from sureties coming.  We made it work.  
Slocum: Thank you for both of your efforts in not letting the schedule being affected.  I appreciate your efforts.  

Ford:  As we go into the next item, we do have an update on the bank documents as well.

Slocum:  Any other questions on the Broadway building?

Pipal:  Mr. Chair, not really a question, more like a request for Ashley.  When you do our sub committee meetings you always send out the appointments?  Can you make sure – we shift things around so much, can you do that when we have these special meetings and things, I would really appreciate that in just managing my calendar it sometimes gets a little crazy and it would be really helpful because then I would have to accept it or deny it.  

Ford:  Sure.
8. Broadway Building Financing Agreement (Lipschultz/Lakey):
Lakey:  I think Ashley laid out the schedule.  We have been waiting to receive the draft bank documents from Washington Trust.  There has been a fair bit of back and forth over getting those and just got handed them today.  The issue being we are moving forward in getting these draft documents put together, but understanding we won’t have the name of the contractor nor will we have the amount until those bids are opened and we award that particular bidder.  The bank seemed a little bit concerned about giving us draft documents without having those, but we didn’t see any reason – I wasn’t looking for changes in the fees or the numbers, more just the body of the document, the language of the document itself and so I hope we have that.  Mr. Cogan and speaking with him he is very familiar with these form type documents, again familiar with Washington Trust and feels he can turn this around almost within 24 hours as far as his comments back to their counsel up north.  Our goal has been to get a final draft version without those pieces of information I just mentioned as far as contractor amount completed by Friday so you can have it in your packet for the special meeting on the 2nd.  Our plan for the 2nd is to have Mr. Cogan come down, go through the bank documents and answer any questions you may have.  It is not – you have already authorized the Chairman or Vice Chairman to sign the documents and approve them, but we did want to give you a chance to look at them and ask any questions and get those questions answered.  Now what we don’t want to do is start the 30 day clock ticking, again, on the resolution that was passed previously.  So that is how we will handle that and that is our timeframe and I think, Ashley, (inaudible) timeframes involved there.  So any questions?
Slocum:  Thank you.  You apparently did a fantastic job – no questions.  
9. Urban Land Institute Technical Assistance Grant (Ford):

Ford:  I have provided a copy of the grant application that went in.  It wasn’t included in the stapled packet, it is separate from that.  Commissioner Pipal and I had the opportunity to walk around downtown with ULI committee members yesterday.  I am fairly certain (inaudible) of this grant and we will have to use some negotiation on what we can contribute from a fiscal aspect and time aspect and figure out who from this board if not everyone that wants to participate.  They saw a lot of opportunity and a lot of good things that are happening in downtown Meridian.  So I am pretty excited about this frankly.  Because I think this will help us in conjunction with what Anna has done to be able to take some of the steps in destination downtown to the next level.

Slocum:  Ashley or Julie who attended from the ULI?

Ford:  We had Diane Kushlan, who is the ULI District Coordinator; we had Ed Miller who is going to be the president elect of ULI District Council when Bob Tong steps down and Bob Tong.

Slocum:  I wasn’t sure if anybody else made it or not.

Ford:  No.  

Slocum:  I know the offer was extended to the ULI group.

Ford:  Yes, they were very enthusiastic.  We gave them a tour of the Ground Floor as well.  They had never been there before.  They were very impressed and a lot of kind words regarding those efforts as well.  So we see a lot of opportunity for us (inaudible) and take this one on.  So my understanding of the process is they are meeting with the City of Nampa today on their application.  They are hoping to get everything in place by the second week of February in terms of decisions made, negotiations with each community and then start outlining a schedule.  They would like to have this completed by June.  So there will be quite a bit of work involved, but I think it is absolutely worth it.  It helps us take destination downtown to the next level and identifies opportunities not only for the Ground Floor, but also our bank buildings and also for private developers as well who are looking for opportunities in downtown.  It is a great process for us.  So I just wanted to make sure –

Slocum:  Fabulous.

Pipal:  Just some additional information for the Board.  They saw our downtown with a different set of eyes.  I don’t think anyone had actually walked around downtown Meridian.  So they had some – it was interesting to see potential through somebody else’s eyes and I think that will be vital for us because even the businesses that we engage and people who are interested in Meridian, we see things based on our perspective having been here and they see things from a totally different perspective.  Just a couple of things that Ed Miller and I talked about and I don’t know if Ashley heard these, but one of them was with regard to the City Hall building, the old city hall and the city ownership and one of the things that they just suggested was is there anyway that MDC could have ownership of that because it is unlikely we would get any kind of financing for any opportunity for MDC to act in that space because it is not something that we would own, it is something that the city owned – even if we had a long term lease on it.  And probably would apply that same thing if we were ever to do anything with the Union Pacific – we don’t own that. I thought it was just really interesting that they focused on what we owned or was in private ownership.  The other thing that I found very interesting is they outright asked if the Board had ever used condemnation and I said no and they said is there any interest – I don’t remember exactly how the question was phrased, but I said no and that was just some of that conversation about using authority and I didn’t think that there was anybody on the Board that wanted to go through that type of a process, so I hope I didn’t speak out of turn by saying that.  I just thought I would add that, but I thought it was a good experience and I would like to – just one more thing back to something that I love to tout – our purpose here is to drive private investment and even if MDC does contribute monetarily to this study or whatever that happens to be, I think we should all be thinking how we can either buy participation in kind, actual dollar donation, if through the Chamber – anybody else – we can bring dollars in and have it be a public private partnership in looking at this study in anything we can do that we should do that and find that private investment in this endeavor.  
Slocum:  Thank you.  I thought whether it has been said before, I know I missed a meeting, but thought the application sold very well.  Your efforts were exceptional in putting that together.  
10. MDC Website Integration RFP Recommendation and Decision (Ford / Red Sky Public Relations): 
Ford:  Chad and I have (inaudible) just to refresh everyone’s memory.  We were directed to go out to RFP to look at combining the two websites that we have into one to some degree.  So we have destination downtown, which has obviously been a successful website platform, we have the MDC website, which a lot of people don’t really understand who MDC is.  We have had this conversation before and how we can integrate that into destination downtown and also the Ground Floor, which the Ground Floor would still maintain its own website, but we would still have it linked to the destination downtown platform as well.  So we went out to RFP and one of the things that we heard loud and clear is that we needed to try and solicit Meridian businesses if at all possible.  So we went to the three entities that currently maintain each of the websites – Eagle’s Consulting which maintains the MDC website; Tribute Media, who maintains the Ground Floor website at this point and Voletix who did destination downtown platform.  Tribute Media is a Meridian based website developer.  We also had interest from another website developer called Yellow Box, which I had never heard of before.  They had approached me and so we sent them the RFP as well.  I also reached out to a couple of independent website contractors who live in Meridian, but did not get the response back from them – just trying to keep business here if at all possible.  So went out to RFP in December.  The RFP’s were due the first week in January and we received three.  Tribute Media decided to pass on proposing on this.  They felt that one of the partners that they work with often is named Vallis and they are a Boise based company would do a much better job for us and so they asked if we would be comfortable with that and I said use your best judgment, but absolutely.  So we have RFP’s – I put the three with the packets from Vallis, from Voletix and from Yellow Box and Chad and I worked through what we thought were the criteria that we needed to judge on and that was one meeting the deadline – because one out of the three did not meet the deadline; we asked them to propose a schedule based on what they thought was realistic, specifications, references, experience, cost and so each one was weighted with different percentages.  So I did throw the percentage weight out to the Chairman of the Board to just kind of get a sense on if you felt that would be adequate – I didn’t hear anything negative back, so that is what we went with for our scoring (inaudible).  As we went through there is two that standout very strongly – Vallis and Voletix in terms of meeting what the scope, understanding what our needs are, their experience, their schedule that was proposed, the references, they really are side by side.  We asked a lot of hard questions in regards to experiences – did they come back for change orders, was their scope (inaudible), was they responsive?  Really it comes down to cost.  That is the differentiating factor at this point.  We did go back and talk with them both just to make sure they both understood what we were asking of them; especially in the sense of Voletix who is currently the website creator and proprietor and did we need to go through certain steps again in terms of integrating these websites.  So we just wanted to make sure we were making a very educated decision.  Without the cost factor, they are dead even – references, they each have extensive integration of websites.  They have excellent references, just neck and neck in the schedule and was almost identical – there was like two days difference in schedules.  It really came down to costs.  Basically, we didn’t give them a budget to work with.  We asked them to come back with what they felt was a reasonable budget.  Voletix came in with a total of $9,000 to do the integration.  For an additional services was be ongoing posting each year of those fees and then out training as needed or support as needed with an additional $1,000 a year.  Vallis came in at $5,850.  With additional services costing just under $1,000 a year for website posting (inaudible).  So that is the differentiating factor.  Both come highly recommended and we obviously know Voletix as they have been the creator of destination downtown and I think there has been a lot of – I think you all have been pretty happy from what I understand of the work product.  If we have to make a recommendation based on – you know with the cost included, obviously Vallis comes in quite a bit lower, but I definitely wanted to bring this to the Board and Chad am I missing anything?
Biggs:  No, I think you captured everything.  Thank you.

Ford:  Also just to throw Yellow Box in there as well.  Yellow Box came in about 30 points lower than the other two.  I just didn’t feel and Chad you can jump in as well – I didn’t feel like they addressed the scope of what we were asking for, the references weren’t as strong.  They weren’t bad, but they weren’t as strong.  They didn’t really talk through how they were going to do this and so just didn’t have that comfort level with them and their bid came in around $7,500 with additional $1,000 a year for other costs.  So I just wanted to propose this to the Board and again I don’t know how big of a difference that is to you from a cost perspective, but I think you have two strong proposals in front of you.  
Slocum:  Thank you Ashley.  Questions for Ashley?

Bird:  What would you recommend?

Ford:  If we have to include the cost, I think obviously the recommendation is Vallis.  

Bird:  Is this covered under budget?


Ford:  Yes, it is.  We have approximately about $15,000 in the budget this year.  

Slocum:  For the record, I should indicate that our illustrious Chairman has joined us.  Mr. Lipschultz has arrived just before 4:30 and I guess with that I get to turn the meeting over to you.

Lipschultz:  I guess at this point on this topic, I guess you made your recommendation, which I think what we are looking for his a motion if the Board would like to take action.

Lakey:  We would need a motion to obviously select the candidate and direct counsel to prepare an agreement to bring back to the Board.

Lipschultz: Correct.  

Pipal:  Is that a motion?

Bird:  He made, so say so moved.

Pipal:  So moved.

Lipschultz:  We have a motion from Ms. Pipal directing counsel to prepare an agreement with Vallis to be brought before the Board for final approval.  Do we have a second?
Slocum:  Second.

Lipschultz:  A motion and second.

Roll Call Vote:  Slocum, aye; Jensen, aye; Bird, aye; Escobar, aye; Pipal, aye; Lipschultz, abstain.

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.
11. Meridian Urban Market Project Update and Decision (Ford):
Ford:  The last meeting that we had in regards to this topic there was a concern that was brought forth by this Board with the presentation from Adrian + Sabine regarding the closure of Idaho Street, potentially in the future.  We did go back in January and meet with the businesses owners that would be affected and talked through the idea of what we are trying to accomplish.  Courtney did a great presentation.  It was a smaller turnout than I would have liked, but the key players were there.  We actually had a follow up meeting with Idaho Independent Bank afterwards as well as they were not at that original meeting with the neighbors.  But the biggest concern that we had with that business was that they have a drive thru that is open until 5:30 and as you remember with Courtney’s proposal the street closure would probably begin around 4 or 4:30.  So we just wanted to have the conversations with the concerns that are out there.  I feel comfortable that we can work through the closure issue with the neighbors.  Everybody seems very receptive with the market idea.  There is concern obviously about closing the street, but Courtney has committed to working with the neighbors and they feel pretty comfortable moving forward – (inaudible) is the Vice President of Idaho Independent Bank and he is the one that probably has the most concern at this point and he was even coming up with some pretty creative solutions on how they could deal with the drive thru issue.  The only thing they want to know is if there are contingency plans in place – if it is not working do we have the opportunity to be able to look at other alternatives?  Maybe moving it a block to the west in front of City Hall or looking at other creative ideas and she has certainly has committed to that.  So my recommendation to you is that I think we can work through that area with the neighbors.  It is certainly up to this Board as to how you all want to fund this (inaudible) but I think in terms of – I was asked to go back and address along with Courtney and I think that we can work through that.  Courtney, unfortunately could not be here today as she is out of town traveling for business, but I will meet with her next week if the Board chooses to move forward on this item and kind of work through what that next step process would be working with ACHD, working with the neighbors and being able to report that back to you as to how that will work.
Lipschultz:  Can you remind us what the amount of the request was from Courtney for financial support?

Ford:  My understanding from Courtney and as she presented it at the last meeting is that she is asking for the full $10,000.  

Lipschultz: Another question – did we get an email from Idaho Independent Bank – I think there was a note in there that it sounded like Mr. Madison was going to send us --?

Ford:  No, I did not hear back, but again leaving that meeting I felt very comfortable with what his preference was and he is the former president of the Chamber of Commerce and he is very much pro economic development business and again he had some very creative ideas.  Unfortunately, I did not receive an email from him prior to today’s meeting, but I do feel comfortable enough to make a recommendation that I think we should move forward.

Lipschultz:  From our discussions it sounded like Idaho Independent Bank was open to trying it, but if we did this once, we wanted to make sure we had another plan or we do something different.

Ford:  Absolutely and that is the same with the other business owners as well, too.  They just wanted the opportunity that if this is not working can we make changes and Courtney talked about her experiences at Bound Crossing and I know she spoke about that at one of the presentations here and they did have to make some tweaks here and there to make it work and make everybody feel comfortable.  

Lipschultz:  Is Courtney open to that as opposed to like a full season commitment of some sort?

Ford:  I am sorry; let me make sure I understand your question.

Lipschultz:  Is she okay with having enough flexibility that if we have some challenges with businesses that we have to do something different?

Ford:  Absolutely and I know that Brenda and Rob were both in the initial meeting with the neighbors too.  I know that they heard that commitment as well.  I think in the documents that she provided for today that are in the packet, she reiterates that again.

Lumsden:  On a week to week basis if necessary.

Bird:  Ashley for the public – is this the group that is going to be putting this on a non profit organization or a for profit?
Ford:  My understand is that Adrian + Sabine is a for profit organization, but I will let Rob correct me if I am incorrect in that assumption.

Lumsden:  Yeah, she will just bill for fees, which will be recovered mostly through the revenue of the markets.  But in order to get the market up and running, she will charge just like an architect or engineer would in order to get a building built.  But she is looking into becoming a 501C for the farmer’s markets that she does run.  So that is not a process that is just a couple of weeks, I think it is somewhat convoluted, but she is trying to figure out how to do that.  

Bird:  I like the idea down there in doing this, I have a problem subsidizing for profit.  If we are going to subsidize for profit companies, there is a whole bunch down here that I am sure would like to take $10,000 from us.  I mean all the businesses would like to have a $10,000 start up fee.  I have a real problem taking taxpayer’s dollars and putting it into – we didn’t do it for the – Craig you can correct me if I am wrong, but we didn’t do it for the farmer’s market that we had here for a long, long time.  To my knowledge the only thing that we tried is the downtown association that we – and that was a non profit organization.  While I think the idea is great, I do have a hard time putting taxpayer’s dollars out for a for profit company.  I do.  

Lipschultz:  I know counsel had some feelings on how we you know if we were to do anything on what it can and cannot be directed to and maybe you could take just a moment and kind of remind us of what is appropriate.

Lakey:  Along those same lines – to make this more safe, I guess from a legal perspective more grounded, it would need to be more like a contract for services, where you are hiring Adrian + Sabine to do something, to provide a service, to give you some consideration for what you are paying them and you would have to set our deliverables in a contract –here is what we want to see for the money that we are paying you.  Where you start to get on the more shaky ground, similar with the façade improvement program is if you are just giving money to a private organization – here is $10,000, we don’t expect anything in return, just go do a good farmers market and we will support more like a donation.  That is where you get on the constitutionally shaky ground.  I think the concept meets several of the goals that you have in your urban renewal documents as far as your purpose – revitalization, providing business investment.  So to make it safer you need to have the contract such that you get something for your money; that she is providing some type of service or providing something tangible verses just a donation along the lines of Commissioner Bird is concerned about.  So, she would be like an architect or lobbyist or somebody else that you are hiring to do something and getting something out of it.

Lipschultz:  Is it appropriate at all to treat this as like an event that gets people downtown, where if it were the Board’s pleasure to not support that business directly, but potentially things like marketing to get people downtown or porta-potties, the infrastructure type as an event?

Lakey:  If you are paying Adrian + Sabine to coordinate that event downtown and get the structure set up and help make the event happen, okay, as long as there is something that you are getting back for it. Whether Commissioner Bird still feels like that pushes that envelope too far that is up to you.  I am trying to – if that is what the Board wants to do to help that happen to try and get it as solid as you can.  

Bird:  Todd as I understand it, we are going to hire her as a professional, am I not right?  That is what you are calling an architect or attorney or –

Lakey:  Or a coordinator or whatever.  Right.

Bird:  Then if we need, which we do need porta-potties or tents set up or whatever you are going to have and stuff, then we are responsible for taking care of that and all we are hiring her for is to oversee it and to get people in.  I don’t know.  It is stuff like this – if the Meridian downtown development thing was still in agreement and come up here and said we are going to try and do this, I don’t think there is a person on this Board or the city that wouldn’t say how can we help other than financially. But you have got a person and she has got to make a wage and she is not donating her time.  Now if she was a non profit where nobody gets paid, I am for giving her some money because the things that I have been involved in the city – been non profit, raised money and we have done it, but not a single one of us has gotten paid for not even a gallon of gas.  That is a non profit in my book and this is a business for pay for profit.  I have a hard time and I think it is stuff like this is the reason that we are up here fighting the legislature in keeping urban renewal districts in the State of Idaho.  Look at the Idaho Center over there.
Pipal:  I have to agree with Commissioner Bird on this – like the downtown association coming to ask us for money – because we did fund that at more than this amount that we are asking and tried to do everything that we could.  But we turned those dollars over to another non profit.  My understanding if I remember correctly from the documents that we have seen in the past, we had documents – I don’t have them with me at this time – we had documents that showed that $10,000 generate an investment in bringing business even if they are transitory – they come in for the market and then they leave and what that could generate in terms of traffic for the businesses already downtown and I believe that if it’s a 90 percent turn on our investment and we have a list of specific deliverables and hire Adrian + Sabine to do certain things for us.  It was my understanding that if we did this then she would take this over – other than some of the things that we would have to be involved in like working with ACHD and some of those things that’s what we would do, but we wouldn’t be responsible for the infrastructure for putting on the market unless I am wrong about that – that was parcel to what we would be saying that you would do these things (inaudible) – including the infrastructure for the market.  I support the concept and I think that when Ashley and Courtney talked to the downtown businesses they support the market, with obviously with the caveat that we need to be respectful of their businesses, but generally they want to see those people down there, the traffic down there.  I don’t know how we could do this, but I am sure that our counsel could guide us.  I would want to move forward but we would have to do this contractually, though even if we did the go ahead we would have to come back and approve an actual contract, is that correct?
Lakey:  That would be my preference Mr. Chairman.

Lipschultz:  I think the challenge that I see in trying to contract (inaudible) top rate is there is kind of an implication there then it is our farmer’s market and she is operating it, which is my understanding and we will get Rob up here in just a second, but my understanding is Courtney’s business model is that she is going to go out and search for sponsors and she is going to go out and sell those.  We would be contracting with her and yet, to Keith’s point that is a for profit revenue stream coming in.  Which is why I suggested that if the Board saw this as a good deal for other downtown businesses for the good of downtown bringing people downtown is there a way to support direct funding certain infrastructure, marketing that is for the common good of all downtown businesses as opposed to a direct contract with Courtney.

Slocum:  I support the concept in the whole. I think it would be great and I guess I always envisioned that what we were being requested was not just to fork over $10,000 and go do whatever you do with it, but we would and maybe I am wrong in this assumption, but as there were expenses for permit fees from ACHD or tent rentals, we would reimburse Adrian + Sabine for those deliverables if you will and that is what we would be getting for our money.  

Lipschultz:  I think that was our perspective.  Maybe it was just from a simplicity standpoint, but I think that Courtney is seeing it as we would be another sponsor and just kind of pay the money and you know I don’t think that is either illegal or appropriate to do that in having specific deliverables.  

Bird:  Just to clear something up with Julie on the money do the DBA – if you look back at the minutes there is two of us that did not vote for it.  Mr. Clarence Jones and Keith Bird did not vote for it.  Where this is going to get us tax money back to replace this $10,000, I don’t know where you getting that from because they don’t pay property taxes or anything else and I will guarantee you when you went and talked to the people downtown you didn’t say that their taxes is subsidized for $10,000.  I have a real problem – while I think the concept is absolutely great, but if it is such a good profitable thing that a couple of people come testify and put up their $10,000 and they can make $100,000 now they would be happy.

Lipschultz:  Did you want to make a comment?  Maybe come up to the table.  Speak loudly and identify yourself for the record.

Lumsden:  (Inaudible) being an observer today for this meeting to support the market in general because I put a lot of time into it and I believe in it thoroughly.  But as Mr. Lakey indicated that is exactly how this relationship would work would be a contract for services.  There is no intent for Courtney to just take a $10,000 lump sum and then just do what she wishes with it.  It would be more of an open book – here are the needs of Adrian + Sabine to make the market successful up to $10,000.  I analogize it and if I am wrong then I am missing something, but I analogize it to the web developer that you just approved.  There is no difference.  Granted there was an RFP out for a few web developers, but they are a for profit operation as well.  They are making money for their time and spending their effort on that.  There is no difference, whether someone is an event manager, a web developer is irrelevant.  Both are adding value to the city in different ways.  You have a motto on your website that says create opportunities for the citizens of Meridian to live, work and play.  Play.  There is no play right now. I just don’t see it and (inaudible) in the downtown Meridian core because I felt it would be a great place to play.  (Inaudible).  So, I think you guys need to make a decision and stand behind it.  I think that the citizens of Meridian would appreciate an opportunity to play every Thursday night during the summer months with their kids, live music and local artisans and local restaurants and bring some energy to that downtown core.  (Inaudible) is a fantastic little operation, but are they going to make it?  There is no walking down there on Tuesday afternoons looking to buy chocolate, but every Thursday night there would be.  Sooner or later someone is going to put a business in right next to them and there is a microwave repair place and there is an appliance repair place and the retail component is eventually what is going to drive this downtown core and fulfill the motto that you guys have on your website.  So as I said, Courtney is going to do a great job and she will be responsible for everything – (inaudible) to nuts – porta potties, cones, signage, permitting, everything.  This is not anything that she is going to do part of it and you will have to do something that is not the deal.  She will do everything.  So let’s play.

Bird:  Why if it is so good for the downtown – and the concept I love and if I was 20 years younger I would go do it as a non profit – I will give you the list of some business men down there and go see if they would be willing to put up $2,500 that is going to bring their money in – there is a lot of businesses and I know most of the owners down there.

Lumsden:  May I respond to that?

Bird:  Yeah, you bet.  

Lumsden:  The difference here is that if we are spreading out the burden much more broad scale than asking one business to support that but I will tell you that for the Bound Crossing market I funded that market.  I gave Courtney $1,500 up front and then I gave her $1,500 over the next three months.  So I put $3,000 in it because I believe in it and that was only a monthly market and I made my money back the first Sunday.  I am not asking – the microwave repair guy, there is no way he is going to put in $2,500 but he is going to put up his little percentage and pre shop is going to put up their percentage that they are responsible for, absolutely, no question.  

Bird:  But they are paying for it.  This is what nobody has explained to it.  That increment tax that comes into urban renewal from their taxes which they pay just like the insurance guy, Dean Mayes, they are paying for it if we give $10,000.

Lumsden:  And they are paying for the redesign of the website as well.

Bird:  That is a product that goes on for a long time and personally I don’t think we need a website, but the rest of the Board does.  We get a lot of hits on it because – well, I have never seen it so I don’t know.  I love the concept and if you and Courtney want to jump in and do it just let me know how I can help, but I don’t like seeing tax payer dollars – now if you want to be a non profit and I mean non profit, no wages, no nothing, come talk to me.

Lumsden:  Well I think that Idaho Food Bank is a non profit and their executive team has even paid into –

Bird:  That is exactly right and that is why I don’t support a lot of non profits – because they are not non profits.  Red Cross, they are non profit?  Not when some executives are getting $1 to $2 million.  

Lipschultz:  The conversations that you have had with Courtney is it her sense that this will not be profitable like the other project or what – kind of getting back to the fundamentals is the request just to make it more profitable or just to bring it to break even or --?

Lumsden:  There is no way to get the project off the ground.  She doesn’t have the $10,000 to do it, but she has the talent and the resources to manage it on an ongoing basis once it is self sufficient.  She put in the budget how much time she would put in on a weekly basis and her hourly wage and also I think she has got an assistant in there and I think that is – I don’t think that she would be doing it if she was going to be loosing money.  I wouldn’t want her to do it.  When I was approached by the former project manager about putting together a concept like this, she was the first person I went to because we had done it together at Bound Crossing and I knew how talented she was and how successful that market was.  But that was a different situation.  That one took a while to make right especially because it was a monthly.  Being weekly the revenue stream is a little more consistent.  So, the booth rentals are weekly; the porta-potties are rentals are weekly; the tent rentals are weekly; tables and all that stuff is weekly – there will be some fixed assets, cones and a number of things that she will purchase, signage and it will be an asset for the long term (inaudible) weekly basis, but you know Tate’s Rents will have to be weekly – setting up the tents, trucks and taking them down.  
Bird:  But all of those costs should be figured in the markup to the vendors because they are paying so much for those booths.  Am I not right?

Lumsden:  Say that again?

Bird:  They are paying for their booths, right?

Lumsden:  Right.  

Bird:  That cost should be all figured in on a weekly basis.  

Lumsden: It is in the budget that you have all received.  That is how the market sustains itself.  Not with MDC support.  

Bird:  I spent 42 years in a private business and you have to make a profit to keep it.  

Lumsden:  Then there is no way to advertise as effectively as we would want to prior to the market being launched without any revenue up to that point.  Okay, am I good?

Lipschultz:  Yeah.  Any other comments?  

Bird:  Let me say one thing. I am one vote so if you want to vote that is fine.  However it votes – did with the $25,000 for the DBA.  I am just one vote.

Lipschultz: Well I think you make a good point that any amount that we put up comes from taxpayers and so I think there is the question of is there enough common good that we are benefiting above and beyond Courtney and we are benefiting other businesses there that warrants us directing some level of their taxing funds to support it.  I have struggled all along with the idea of kind of an undirected sponsorship because I think that is a problem, but is there some level of support for marketing that would get people downtown – potentially some of the porta-potties and some structure that benefits the entire downtown that the Board would be comfortable with?  That is the question.  

Escobar:  I have kind of been involved since the beginning of this and how it came out – it actually came to me because there was – I mean it is part of the destination downtown and in the livability committee we had people that came and were involved outside the entire initial focus group that said I am interested in this, I want to be a part of this and – we have had presentations from other people that were considering similar things, but I don’t think the concept was there and I don’t think that it was well thought out.  After having seen this and seeing the amount of effort that was put into it – I don’t know how it is going to happen unless we kind of push it, you know?  I agree with the web development type thing – it is kind of like you are building a website and I guess kind of different because it is not being necessarily our market it is Adrian + Sabine.  It is pitched both ways at the beginning, but I don’t know how – I think it benefits more than just downtown, it benefits the entire city.  I know a lot of people that I have spoken to from the surrounding neighborhoods that say if there was something downtown, if there was a market, I would go and take my family.  So I don’t know how it would happen without some push.  

Lipschultz: In your discussions, Ashley with Courtney is that up to $10,000 for the level of support – it has been a few weeks since we have looked at the budget. Is there any –

Ford:  Mr. Chairman she is asking for the full $10,000 – it wasn’t up to – it was an equal $10,000.  I did not get the impression that she would be coming back asking for additional funding at least from us.  I think she is open for any additional funding that she needed she would get their private businesses downtown, other sponsorships.  

Lipschultz:  Counsel was it your sense that a contract as more of a management agreement made more sense than a reimbursement of specific expenditures or did you not have a preference?

Lakey:  Probably so.  We are kind of still in this gray area.  The closer it is to a donation where if it is just a flat reimbursement you are essentially donating kind of to the entity, money to cover their cost.  If you put some controls on that, if you are edging away from the flat donation, but you are still a little closer to that.  If you are getting some marketing and some PR and some coordination as a result of your fees and maybe have some reimbursable you are getting closer to the professional services.  If you were just flat hiring her to market downtown and part of what she was doing was the market and some other things, then you are in that professional services consultant realm  So I want to try to make you as solid as you can on your agreement for what you want to do, but letting you know you are in somewhat of that gray area; you need to bring it as close as we can to the professional services type agreement and try to craft it that way if that is the way the Board wants to go and if somebody challenges it, you look at the challenge and decide what to do, but the closer I can craft it to a professional services agreements and reimbursables the better.
Escobar:  Counsel Lakey if we do it with the professional services approach, wouldn’t we have to go out for an RFP type process?

Lakey:  No, you are under the $25,000.

Escobar:  Okay.

Pipal: I would move that we approve the concept of going forward with the Meridian Urban Market and direct counsel to draw up a professional services agreement with Adrian + Sabine for our approval at a regular meeting next month.  

Slocum:  I second that wholeheartedly.

Lipschultz:  Discussion?

Bird:  Mr. Chair in your motion does that include $10,000?

Pipal:  Yes.

Lipschultz:  Do you see a way to craft the agreement that if the project doesn’t continue for some period of time – in other words let’s say there was only one event because we there weren’t enough booths sold or something or businesses were not happy with the event that we would be able to back away without paying that full amount?

Lakey:  I can try to put something in there to that affect.  I think that they would evaluate that or have to figure out a timeframe, maybe like you have a flat amount, but it is kind of like a progress payment or something and you evaluate mile stones as you go along or something to that effect and try to incorporate that in there.  I guess what your visioning mission is that they do a couple of these and if there isn’t support or it is not working and you want to be able to back out of the agreement, a termination clause?

Lipschultz:  My understanding is, you know, marketing as an example, Courtney’s assumption was that that would occur over some number of events. So if there weren’t some set number of events and the entire amount wasn’t really expended that that would be returned to the agency.

Lakey:  I will try exploring that concept and see what Adrian + Sabine has to say and this would also be an agreement for this season, so to speak. It is not any outgoing commitment to keep doing this; it is trial balloon so to speak and see how it works.

Lipschultz:  Right.  I guess with that concept Project Manager Ford could potentially talk to Courtney and see if they could come to an agreement on an initial payment and progress payments.
Slocum:  I would – in my thinking the agreement is going to define for the 2011 season it is going to have a start date, it is going to define that they are going to be weekly from this date until this date, so we will have a number that the agreement is established upon and if there is only five instead of 15 or whatever they are supposed to be, compensation would be adjusted accordingly, if it is a true deliverable on the agreement.

Lipschultz:  Is that consistent with the scope of your motion?

Pipal:  Most professional services agreements have a list of deliverables and they have termination clauses and I would expect that in that direction we encompass all those facets of a professional services agreement and to Member Bird’s comment, yes, the $10,000 was requested in the budget.  

Lipschultz:  Further discussion?

Roll Call Vote:  Slocum, aye; Jensen, aye; Bird, nay; Escobar, aye; Pipal, aye; Lipschultz, aye.

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.
Lipschultz:  For the record, it is 5:10 and Mr. Bird is leaving, which is totally unrelated to the vote.

Slocum:  He had to leave before we voted.  


Bird:  It isn’t the first time I have been beat.


Pipal:  Mr. Chairman I have to leave as well.

Lipschultz:  Okay, for the record, Ms. Pipal is leaving as well.  We still have a quorum of four and for the record, the Chair is holding down Mr. Escobar.
12. Ground Floor Report (Ford / Lipschultz): 
Lipschultz:  Ashley, Ms. Pipal and I had a meeting with the owners of the Ground Floor and what triggered that meeting is in our lease agreement with the owners of the building, the lease terminates July 31st and we had an 180 day notice period for a renewal.  We have the option that is I think three one year renewals.  That timeframe was basically that January 31st we were required if we wanted to renew the lease to notify the owners, so we decided before coming back with a recommendation to the Board that again, Julie, Ashley and I would sit down with the owners and understand what their objectives were for that site; is this working for them? You know, what is working and what isn’t.  So we got together at the end of last week, I think it was and had a good meeting.  Essentially where we are at is this has been, I think, a fair deal for them.  The upstairs lease with Tribute Media is working pretty well.  They are not totally understanding at this point of Tribute Media’s needs going forward for space.  That is one of the follow ups to the meeting was for them to meet with Tribute Media and really understand what their objectives were, what space needs they might have.  Again, we brought up a number of different concepts, everything from if they have a willingness to operate this site and some type of partnership and it would make sense to have somebody else come in and partner with them and we explored a lot of different concepts and I think at the end of that meeting we basically decided that before our sub committee was ready to come back with a recommendation to the Board on renewal or termination that we have a lot more work to do in terms of Gwen has been working on the strategy for the Ground Floor and some approaches that she will be talking to us about over the next few weeks. Really the 180 day notification period is difficult for us to work with just because at this point again the committee wasn’t really feeling comfortable making a recommendation one way or the other to the Board.  It is obviously they have a large financial commitment in the Ground Floor, our lease runs through July 31st; as we establish the equipment leases for telecommunications for the copier and we made sure those were all aligned with that July 31st date.  So at that point, we do have a decision to make – what is the strategy and what is the go forward plan?  What we ask the owners of that building was if they would be open to reducing that notification period from 180 days to 90 days, which would give us the next 90 days to basically clarify our own thinking; you know what is the strategy?  Do we think it is a successful strategy?  Is it meeting our objectives?  Do we want to renew for another year?  Do we want to try and negotiate a shorter renewal period?  Look at this more in bite sized chunks to see what is working and what is not.  That is kind of where we left it, but I think the recommendation of our committee at this point was we asked counsel to draw a simple amendment to our lease on that property that would change the 180 day notification period to 90 days and that would give us basically till April 30th to again really get comfortable with our strategy and go forward with a plan.  Ashley and I will stand for questions.
Slocum:  The landlord was open to that 90 day --?

Lipschultz:  Extremely open.

Slocum: Very good.

Lipschultz:  I think after we kind of surfaced the idea of shorter notification periods, he suggested that we come back with an amendment.  
Ford:  Honestly I think their biggest fear was that we were just going to say we are out.  I think they were just really happy to know that we were still in this at this point. We still believe in the vision and we want to move forward with that and we just need to get a better grasp on what that looks like and proceed forward.  

Slocum:  Do you need any final motion or – it will come back before us --?

Lakey:  I put together a draft – I didn’t put the 90 days, what I did was put the date in there – the May 1st.  Just a motion to authorize either the Chairman or Vice Chairman or Secretary to sign the agreement allowing for any additional time to exercise the option and to (inaudible) with a formal – if that works for you. If you want me to tweak it a little, Mr. Chairman, that will work too.  It only does it for the first one verses coming back with a full amendment to the agreement on all options to be the same.  I can approach it either way.

Lipschultz:  Well I think it meets the objectives.  The owners agreed that let’s keep it as simple as possible because at this point, the committee doesn’t know what we are going to come back and ask them May 1st.  Is it for a six month renewal or longer?  If we decide to have somebody else operate it or they get excited about the idea, you know, maybe the lease just expires and somebody else becomes the tenant.  I think those are all questions that we still have, so I think this meets our objectives. Basically again on the tickler file we have the January 31st date, so this will help us kind of get around notification requirement to give us another 90 days to decide direction for the project.  I think reading this it is an awful simple agreement.  I think that if it is the pleasure of the Board we could have a motion just directing the chair to execute the modification to the lease agreement and changing the notification date from January 31st to May 1st.

Escobar:  So moved.

Jensen:  Second.

Lipschultz:  A motion and a second approving this letter of agreement to change the notification date for renewal from January 31st to May 1st.  Any discussion?

Roll Call Vote:  Slocum, aye; Jensen, aye; Escobar, aye; Lipschultz, aye.

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.
13. Counsel’s Report (Lakey):
Lakey:  Just briefly we were hoping to have the façade improvement kind of opinion from counsel around this time – with the recent fires we were putting out on some things – so, my goal was to have that in your hands for the next meeting.  Other than that I don’t have anything else to report.
Lipschultz:  Questions for counsel?
14. Project Manager’s Report (Ford):

Ford:  I don’t have anything to report to the Board at this time.  Any questions or concerns?

Lipschultz:  Questions for Ashley?
15. Adjourn the Meeting:

Escobar:  I move we adjourn the meeting.
Slocum:  Second.

Lipschultz: A motion and a second.  All in favor.

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.

(Audio on file of these proceedings)
APPROVED:

___________________________



____/____/____

LARRY LIPSCHULTZ, CHAIRMAN
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